Village Of Cambridge
Personnel Committee Meeting
Amundson Community Center, Senior Room
200 Spring St, Cambridge
Wednesday, November 16, 2022
5:30 P.M.

1. Call To Order/Roll Call
2. Proof Of Posting
3. Approval of Minutes from Meeting: April 19, 2022
4. Public Appearances/Citizen Input
5. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding:
a. Review of Employee Handbook

b. Convene into Closed Session per 19.85(1)(c) of the Wisconsin Statutes to
consider the employment, promotion, compensation or performance
evaluation data of Village employees: considering performance evaluation
data of a Village employee

c. Reconvene into Open Session
d. Possible action taken on closed session items

6. Any Other Business to be Brought Before the Committee

7. Adjournment

1. Persons needing special accommodations should call 423-3712 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting.

2. A quorum of the Village Board may attend this meeting for the purpose of gathering information relevant to their
responsibilities as Village Trustees. No matters shall be considered by said Village Board members nor shall
any action be taken by said Village Board members at this meeting.

3. More specific information about agenda items may be obtained by calling 423-3712.

Lisa Moen, Village Clerk f/Administrator/Deputy Treasurer



Village Of Cambridge
Personnel Committee Meeting
Amundson Community Center, Senior Room
200 Spring St, Cambridge
Tuesday, April 19, 2022
5:30 P.M.

MINUTES

1. Call To Order/Roll Call: Chairperson Schaefer Weiss called the meeting to
order at 5:30 p.m. Members present. Trustee Kumbier and Chairperson
Schaefer Weiss. Excused: Trustee Franklin. Others present: Lisa Moen,
Administrator; Tod Lord, Public Works Director; Mark McNally, President; Nick
Maas and Mike Reiber, Dancing Goat.

2. Proof Of Posting: The Agenda was posted in the upper and lower levels of the
Amundson Community Center; Cambridge Post Office, Hometown Bank and the
Village Website.

3. Approval of Minutes from Meeting: April 11, 2022

Trustee Kumbier made a motion to approve the minutes as presented, seconded by
Trustee Schaefer Weiss. Motion carried.

4. Public Appearances/Citizen Input:
a. Nick Maas shared his displeasure with Administrator Moen and President
McNally. He has a timeline of the history of the water issues and the
Village and the Dancing Goat Distillery.

5. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding:

a. Public Works Laborer Position: As Tod Lord has accepted the position of
Public Works Director, a laborer position is now open. Administrator Moen
included in the packet the job announcement and ad that were used the last
time we advertised for this position. Director Lord was present and
expressed his support of filling this position. He has realized that there is
much more to the work the department does and the position is needed.
Moen added that with a relatively new staff, the extra person would be very
valuable.

Trustee Kumbier made a motion to recommend to the Village Board that we post the
position to public works laborer, seconded by Trustee Schaefer Weiss. Motion carried.

b. Convene into Closed Session per 19.85(1)(c) of the Wisconsin Statutes to
consider the employment, promotion, compensation or performance
evaluation data of Village employees: Administrator Moen review. Trustee
Schaefer Weiss made a motion to Convene into Closed Session per
19.85(1)(c) of the Wisconsin Statutes to consider the employment, promotion,
compensation or performance evaluation data of Village employees:
Administrator Moen review, seconded by Trustee Kumbier. Motion carried on
a 2-0 roll call vote.



c. Reconvene into Open Session: Trustee Kumbier made a motion to
reconvene into open session, seconded by Trustee Schaefer Weiss. Motion
carried on a 2-0 vote.

d. Possible action taken on closed session items: None

6. Any Other Business to be Brought Before the Committee: The Committee
will meet again in three months to review goals.

7. Adjournment: Trustee Schaefer Weiss made a motion to adjourn, seconded by

Trustee Kumbier. Motion carried. Schaefer Weiss adjourned the meeting at 6:42
p.m.

Lisa Moen, Village Clerk /Administrator/Deputy Treasurer



Village of Cambridge

Employee Handbook

2020

With revisions as approved by Personnel to 11/27/12
Revisions 12/14/2015 by Personnel Committee
Revision 7/8/2019 by Personnel Committee

Revision 12/29/2020 Village Board

Originally Approved by the Village of Cambridge
Board of Trustees November 22, 2005

Prepared by Virchow Krause & Co., LLP



TABLE OF CONTENTS

INT-R OB T IO i ccssvimmmsmimmsmmsmmem s i s s i s i s e et 4
MV B OIS osisrmavosommmmmssmos e o T R BT R A R T R e T A A TR o 4
OUFMISEION A PUDIC EPIOVBEE, oo vy somossssss i o a0 s S 8 s S e e e s 4
Background Information About Cambridge ..........cooueiiiiiiiiiii e 5
YOUr MIlAQgE GOVETIIMIENL suvvuvamwis vasmss sivmssnumvesisses issas s semsvssss s ss i sy (im0 S S s o3 S T s 6
Our Goals And Service Philosophy ................. K S T A A A P A R R P A e 6
Commitment TO CUSEOMEN SEIVICE .......oeiiieiiee ettt ettt e et e e e e e e e eenaeeeeaneas 6
EMPLOYMENT POLICIES: .cccouie nmunsmuservomsnmsos i s s iy s i s v i85 s i85 S5 Soas s s ens 7
AWV StALUS OF ErPIOVEESE s vvumiersvnsmsssvesinscoiissisessusssims s osissbisvyssasiigsassi i s i esn i i 7
PRy SIC A B IIINERION vy sunovssmsssmsssvossmisimmsm s s s o 454 L E o A bR R R STV B R0 7
Personnel Record Changes .................. et heeeehheeeetheeeethbeeenhe e et bt e e en bt e e h et e ettt e e et e eeate et e et et e e e e e e e e 7
Ethical Standards/Conflict Of INTEIEST ........ocouiiiie et 8
OPEN DOOT POIICY ..ottt ettt ettt etttk b ettt s sttt sttt s st s ens s en s ene e 8
ST I ONS ..ottt et b e ettt bt ettt ettt 8
Equal Employment Opportunity POLICY ...........ooiiiiieei et enee e 8
ANti-HArassSMENT POHCY ..ottt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e ae e e aeeaeeees 8
SeXUAL HAraSSMEBNT ...ttt e et rm et e e e e emte e e e e e e e nn e e e e e e e e e e e entnnraeeeaeeas 9
Immigration Reform ACEINOLICE ..ottt e e s e e eenaeeeneea 10
GENEIAI PONGIES ...ttt et e e et et e ee e et e et eeae e ettt e et e et et et e eeeeemereeeeaeeeeens 11

=11 (1 T U SO OUP TR PO U TR OUPOPUURTPUPRPRRRPRRRTR 11

PErSONAI APPEATANCE .. ...ttt eee e e e et et e et eeeaeseeessa s taasbanssse s teesaessaessaaessassssesbaenbsnessnnsnnns 11

Solicitation or DIStribDULION ..........c..oiiiii et 11

SIMIOKING ... ti ettt ettt ettt et ent e e ee st e saeese e et ams 2 es b e ese e e e esees R s eR b e eas e es e e bt eAs ekt e st e na e reeen e ent e eneeen e eneeereea 11

Drug Free WOTKDIACE ...ttt e e s 11

F N a1 N [T oo (111 IO O OO RPRPPRRRRPPRTR 12
NO VIiolence in the WOTKDIGCE ..........oooiiiiiii e 12
COMPENSATION ..ottt e e s e e e e e et s et e e sseeaessee e e eanee s e e st e s eessee s e e se e e e e e seeeeeeens 12
EX e DN O EX OO e s s S e L S T B s 05 S mmnr s mmcarnnr s e st 12
Holirs: @f Waork — Flexible Work Time s s i e i s s s s i s 12
Punctuality and ANt aN T s s s i s o s s e o s e T S e R T 12
Brealis o iy i e v s s s s P T T o e B T e e e S s e 12
Outside: EMpPIOVIMENL s i s i om i s i s st 13
PaY DAY oy e T S T S R A S S s 13
Payvroll e i O i s s s e B P B T S s e 13
Overtime and CompPenSatony TiMIE... ...ttt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 13
WeeKendORCall PONGIES wvvmrsumsm s i S s s s e B T e v S i 14
Tiiie Card or TME RS COI s s e e T S B T S BT R 15
Wage Increases (General Wage Increase and Merit Pay)...........coooo oo, 15
Uniforms and EGUIDMBNT s s misoss i s e i s s s D s v e B s 16
o= 1T [ T = 16
OB S vvvmanmsmmmmnm oo s s o 0 T s T T 5 S e R R R T 16
NBEEION Lo s it oy s s o o o o o S A B o S B Ao 4 S B A R P 17
] o Y A 17
JURY BYUIRYccvivissmumenumoss v owmsstis oo s s 505 F 8 o 8 T S R B R 8 S P A A 18
Military: L ave: Of ADSBINCE ..c.ovucuwrimm svvmm o ovsmsse s sy o s s 52 e 8 s 5 S e S s o e 18
EOOER LG AN v o vmosons s 445w 5453500 0400 5 R G e A S M B S G AR 19
L AV T AISEINICE v svvumas vansessvasasssavionon e s avsss e ss dams s sFs s Gy a3 s 4 b s o S T A LS LR 19
Family and Medical Leave of Absence....................... e R S T S S 20
FRINGE BENEFTTS ..ottt ettt ettt e ekt e et e ettt e et e e e e e e e e e e e een e eeenen 20
MediCal BERETIES ... ettt ettt e e e e e e e e nna 20
DENEAI BENEFS ..oeeii ettt ettt ettt a b h e e et e e e e e e e e e eenne 21

Page 2

Employee Handbook Approved by Village Board as revised December 29, 2020



Flexible Spending PIAN.........cvsssocassemscresmssnnsnmsmrnsssassoebsosisise soviisnes s bisisioie s b i i i 21

Retirement BEREHIS . ......ouurnrenmsnessmmesssmmmssssmnssssinss s i odd 560 600 a0 S s S D R S 21
Retiree MediCal BEREFItS. ... .. ..ooviiie oottt ettt e ke st e e e e e e 22
COBRARCE.........ocoosnanssnnsnsmmsssnmmnnsnnnei i b e D R D T B R R 22
Tuition Reimbursement And TTaiMiNg .........coooiioii i rn e e e e e e e e e e 22

Employee Orientation and TRaiming - oo i 8 i i 22

Emplovee Trainig s s T T T B R o T D P B A T A B 22

TrRINNG-REkAtB T rENE o oo e Vi S A R £ SRS s SRR 23

Tuition and BOOK REIMDUISEIMENT ........ciiiuiiiiie ittt rae e e e sae e eaae e 23
CONDIUET i s s s o S5 o S e T T A 0 S S S A S 23
Distipline-and DISChETTE v sty s s v v s o e o8 TS e 4 v o o S e T T S R Y 24
C OMIDIEIIES s v ool B T S R A v A A S ST P O R SR R TS 24
EV AN UTETIONIS s s s s i A S S YA 4 P S O T D e SRR e £ 24
ST VIO RIBVIBW ¢ srvivn ot s ivuvab v ian e s o v o S o 4 s D L S P S S VS VAR T S e e s 24
GOOH G OMMIUNICATION . o uvimusmiiversirs s s s ores oer e o e 8 o e T3 s T e 24
P OO OIS s s s e s v oS R M VT W YT T D SRR 4 ¥ ST R PR B8 s B 525 2 25
D IO TN =iy v sy o oo oo o s P e TV v A s N E VA £ S s SR M e 25
ot =il o V| (o |- J oo o1 1 A A NAGp S ——en—— 25
Use of Village Equipment and SUPPHES ..o TT— 25
Use of Village-Owned VERICIES ..o 25
TOOIS AN EUTD I cvcosivwsvssvvvesionasiervsnmass s s o s 0 505 50U 0 Y s S0 o3 e e o s U4 45 048445 50 G S AT H R P AT 26
Mobile PRONES/RAUIOS/PAGEIS  cuvauiivisimss vussins s st s sos s i i ts s 180 18 i Vo R RS SRS 100D 27
TOlEPAOTIE IIEE cuvivscrosvvsvensssvasninsisse voismss i i o6t F ST ER VS e om B X S5 3  § H0 {aA F A A F 27
ELECTRONIE ERUIPNENT POLICY cxmmsmesmmoronmmmieesss s smmssmm s sy s s i s S sy s v s 85 27
GENEFA] i s s sy R S B S A R S i S S e e 27
INTEINEE AN B ..ot e e e oottt et et e e e ettt e e e e mna e et e e e et e e e eaeean 27
TN oo S M R R S A T S A SR e e 27
E Y0 i1 2= 4 - ROUUU T U U U TSSOSO UORURTE 28
D=1 WU DTSR 28
L= o011 OO S ETE TSP PP T PP UPPOUPPOPRPOPY 28
Monitoring Communications and Software USE ..............ocooiiiiiiiiiiic 28
D= o= ] (o =T [ OO OO OO PP PP P PO PO P RO PRSP 28
FEEVIRI s s s s i e S £ A YA S A T A AR R s smm e R B R PV 28
LTI NI A GRS S .ttt ee e e e e e e et e et ea e eae e eaa e eae e ea et E et s £ e e ae e £ es e e ear e esn e e e e e ae e 29
Personal Use of Networks and COMPULBTS .........oo it 29
= re 1ol = e I N A A L (=TT U O PO S PP PP U PP PO UPPPPPPRON 30
COMPLANCE W LBWS ...ttt 30
CSAEET Y. ... commanemmmmesn s atnsasasss s messpess s sumnihes s LT T T B O Y U o TR 30
JOD: REISIO IRJUTIES.... .- ..en reneineassrnemysnessnsnassarmssmsss s oSasT SR e S O R o RV T U R S 31
VACATING YOUR BOSITICIN. ........ocoremsnes s b i m s s i G S o o s e i 31
R IO ITIRINE L. v e cr v rmre s omm st bt s s s s s mmenmemee e o B S T S VA RS T I 31
LaVORT.. .. o mmersmnsssmmummsmmnnssmrssnrsssonssnsennssm snsas samsase st s LV BV s S T S Py s e 31
Loss of Acceptable Position ReqUIremeNt....... ... 31
RESIGRALION. .......covrverisensnsensesasnsassissssstsnstonsnssmsssmiontonisesanssesisssssest vetassvessdessbhs s e e bbb i ke s bbb s s n s s 31
GONGLUISHON.......ooonemsom mmsmnmoms e i 50 0 e B 4 T N R e S S e RS SR T 31
APPENDIX A - OFFICIAL EMPLOYEE NOTICES ..ot 33
R G NPT ..o vsnersmeem s camesmmans mssnesmesenm s Ao L0008 N A 0 B B R DR s T SRS A 34

Page 3

Employee Handbook Approved by Village Board as revised December 29, 2020



INTRODUCTION

We are pleased that you have chosen our Village as the place you wish to work. Every job in this
organization is important. Each employee’s position plays a vital role in making the Village of Cambridge
an outstanding organization. In order to provide Village services in the most professional manner and with
the highest ethical standards, it is important for each employee of the Village of Cambridge to understand
their responsibilities and obligations, as well as the many benefits of employment with the Village.

The Village of Cambridge is devoted to producing the best quality of life for its residents. We need your
help to keep the quality of our community at a high standard. Please remember as you read this guidebook
and as you perform your job with the Village, that you play a very important part in making these things
come true. Your work will determine your future and the Village's future. This manual has been prepared to
assist you in becoming acquainted with your job with the Village. Please take time to read through the
manual.

We are confident that you will progress and achieve success at the Village of Cambridge and we hope your
experience with us will be satisfying and beneficial both to you and to our village. If you have any questions,
about this handbook or any other aspect of your employment at the Village of Cambridge, please do not
hesitate to ask your supervisor, the Village Administrator/Clerk/Deputy Treasurer or any member ofthe
Village Board.

The policies and procedures summarized in the manual are presented as information only and are not
conditions of employment. The Village of Cambridge reserves the right to modify, suspend, revoke,
terminate or change in whole or in part, any of its policies, procedures, practices or benefits at any time with
or without notice. The language used in this manual is not intended to create, nor is it to be construed to
constitute, a contract between the Village of Cambridge and any one or all of its employees. No
representative of the Village of Cambridge other than the Village Board has any authority to enter into any
agreement of employment for any specified period of time.

Welcome

Welcome to the Village of Cambridge. As a new employee, you will be providing a valuable service to the
citizens of Cambridge and we hope that you will find your new position interesting and rewarding.

This handbook should answer some of the questions you may have about working for the Village of
Cambridge. Please read the handbook carefully and refer to it as necessary. This handbook is aconvenient
summary guide; it is not a comprehensive list of the Village’s personnel policies nor is it intended to create
a contract. This handbook addresses matters of interest for all employees, althoughthe benefit summary
is intended primarily for full-time employees. Temporary employees are not eligible for Village benefits,
except as required by state law or as outlined in this handbook.

Personnel issues and concerns should be directed to the Administrator/Clerk/Deputy Treasurer, who will
then refer them to the Personnel Committee for further consideration. Personnel Committee
recommendations are approved by the Board of Trustees, which has final authority.

Our Mission as Public Employees

The primary purpose of local government is to provide service to its citizens. As an employee of the Village
of Cambridge, your job is to serve and assist the residents of our community and those visiting or doing
business here.

Our mission is to work together to effectively and efficiently serve the residents of Cambridge. The “team
management” concept is necessary with everyone working together, in a trustworthy and loyal manner, to
provide the best service possible to our residents.

Page 4
Employee Handbook Approved by Village Board as revised December 29, 2020



About Cambridge

In beautiful south central Wisconsin, on the edge of Dane and Jefferson counties, lies the village of
Cambridge, population 1175. We are located 20 minutes east of Madison, 30 minutes northeast of
Janesville and one hour west of Milwaukee. Our close proximity to major cities, as well as the Interstate,
offers an ideal location making Cambridge a great place to work or call home. We are also home to many
thriving businesses, unique shops and a strong school district in addition to many parks, recreational
opportunities and beautiful Lake Ripley.

Village offices are housed in the Amundson Community Center. The center includes areas for community
and senior activities as well as houses the Cambridge Community Library. The village has about nine
employees and about six library employees. Police services are contracted with Dane County Sheriff's
Department. Cambridge has a volunteer Fire Department and a Community Activities (Recreation)
Program.

Organizational Chart

Your Village Government

VOTERS/CITIZENS

\

VILLAGE BOARD OF

TRUSTEES
ADMINISTRATOR/
| CLERK/DEPUTY
TREASURER
[
| I I | |
LIBRARY BOARD PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR ADMIN ASSISTANT UTILITY CLERK c;";@g‘;ﬁ;{,‘;i;‘;}}m

LIBRARY DIRECTOR [ | w/s oPERATOR

— LABORERS (FT)

L] LABORERS (PT)

Page 5

Employee Handbook Approved by Village Board as revised December 29, 2020



The Village of Cambridge operates under a Board of Trustees form of government. There are seven Board
members. Each Board member is elected from the Village at-large for overlapping two year terms. Elections
are held on a non-partisan basis in April of each year, preceded by a February primary if there are more
than two candidates for the same office. Half of the trustees are elected each year to provide continuity to
the board. Village voters also choose a president, who by virtue of his or her office is a trustee. That person
presides and votes at all meetings of the board, and signs ordinances and other official documents.

The Village Board makes Village policy, adopts the Village budget, and appropriates funds. The Village
Board hires a Village Administrator/Clerk/Deputy Treasurer who is the Chief Executive Officer responsible
for the administration of the Village.

The Village Administrator/Clerk/Deputy Treasurer is responsible for the general administration of all Village
business and coordinates Department Heads. The Department Heads and all other Village employees
assist the Village Administrator/Clerk/Deputy Treasurer in providing the services legislated by the Village
Board for the citizens of Cambridge.

You are one of these important employees, without whom the Village would be unable to function. Your
contribution to this organization is a major factor in the success of the Village to provide the great quality
of life Cambridge residents have come to expect and appreciate.

Our Goals and Service Philosophy

The following long term goals have been established to guide you in providing Village services. It is
important that you understand why you are deing your job, you become familiar with these goals, and you
always strive to provide services in a manner consistent with them.

= Provide quality, economical, efficient, and effective services in an equitable manner.
* Involve citizens in the decision-making precess and be responsive to their input.

» Provide professional management in a fiscally responsive manner with the highest standard
of integrity.

Similarly, we recognize a management philosophy that puts the citizen first. Citizens are the focus of all of
our services. Therefore, it is important that you support the efforts of the Village Board and the Village
Administrator/Clerk/Deputy Treasurer in governing the Village, and always maintain ethical conduct.

Commitment to Customer Service

When you have contact with citizens, you are expected to promote the Village's best interest and build
citizen goodwill. When you come in contact with a member of the public, you are the *Village,” and the only
employee with whom a citizen might talk. The citizen judges the character of the entire Village government
based upon the way you perform, your attitude and appearance.

Please listen carefully to customer inquiries and complaints and then respond in a courteous, professional
manner. Take a sincere interest in a customer’s questions and never lose your temper, even if a customer
should become inconsiderate with you.

If a controversy with a customer arises, attempt to explain Village policy clearly yet respectfully. You cannot
know all the answers, but you may refer the citizen seeking information to the right source. If a customer
becomes unreasonable and you cannot resolve the problem, refer the customer to yoursupervisor. This
assures that both you and the customer remain satisfied.

Page 6
Emplayee Handbook Approved by Village Board as revised December 29, 2020



The same customer relations policies that apply to in-person customer relations also apply to telephone
contacts. Answer the telephone promptly and be courteous and friendly to the caller. If a call is misdirected
to your phone, determine the correct destination of the call and arrange for its transfer.

EMPLOYMENT POLICIES

The Village of Cambridge is an Equal Opportunity Employer. It is our policy to administer all of our
employment policies in a nondiscriminatory manner without regard to race, color, religion, sex, age, national
origin, physical disability, or any legally protected group.

At-Will Status of Employees

As a matter of policy, the Village does not enter into written or oral contracts or agreements guaranteeing
employment or compensation for any particular period of time with any individual employees. No employee
is authorized to make guarantees of employment or compensation. Employment with the Village is at-will
— that is, employment may be terminated with or without cause and with or without notice at any time by
the employee or the Village. Nothing in the employee manual or any other document or statement shall
limit the right to terminate employment at-will. No express or implied agreement to the contrary may be
made unless it is made by the Village Board and only if the Village Board does so in a formal written
agreement that is signed by both the Village President and the employee.

Physical Examination

Upon offer of employment, the Village may require the selected candidate to undergo a physical
examination by the Village physician, at the Village's expense. The purpose of the physical examination is
to assure that the candidate is physically fit to perform the essential job duties and functions of the position
as detailed in the job description.

Federal Controlled Substances and Alcohol Use and Testing Rules for Employees with Commercial Driver's
Licenses

In accordance with Federal Register 49 CFR Part 382, the Village will request alcohol and controlled
substances information from the previous employer of any employee who possesses and is expected to
use for Village business a Commercial Driver’s License (CDL).

Personnel Records

It is important the Clerk's office has current information on you in case of an emergency and for
administrative needs. You are responsible for keeping the office informed of any change in your name,
address, marital status, number of eligible dependents, or beneficiaries, and for providing appropriate
Federal and State withholding information; accurately completing your time cards; and reporting
absences.

Wisconsin State law has established that public employee disciplinary or personnel records are not exempt
from disclosure under the open records law unless the public interest in keeping the records confidential
outweighs the presumed substantial public interest in disclosure of the records. A Village employee whose
privacy or reputational interests will be impacted by disclosure of information requested under the open
records law has a right to notice and judicial review of the custodian’s decision to disclosethe information,
regardless of who the public records custodian is.

If your personal employment information is requested in an open records request, you will be given a notice
describing the requested record and an explanation of your rights to file a notice of intent to appeal,and
also to seek a court order restraining access to the record. The law prohibits the release of the record until
the matter has made its way all the way through the various courts and all the appeal periods have run. If
you have questions about the disclosure of your personnel record information, please contactthe
Administrator/Clerk/Deputy Treasurer.

Page 7
Employee Handbook Approved by Village Board as revised December 29, 2020)



Ethical Standards/Contflict of Interest

The Village of Cambridge has an excellent reputation for conducting its business activities with integrity,
fairness, and in accordance with the highest ethical standards.

Employees must bring overall ethical and professional behavior to the job. Our demands for excellence and
the preservation of our integrity, objectivity and complete fairness are distinguishing characteristics ofthe
Village. The discovery of any questionable, fraudulent or illegal activities, offers or transactions shouldbe
reported to the Police, Village Administrator/Clerk/Deputy Treasurer, or a member of the Village Board.

The activities of the Village of Cambridge are based on Section 19.59 of Wisconsin State Statutes, “Codes
of ethics for local government officials, employees and candidates.” The statute prohibits: taking action that
would produce a financial gain to the individual, or his/fher immediate family or using their position to benefit
the employee, or his/fher immediate family. Although the statute is rather broad, the general test is: if it looks
like an employee is getting or giving special treatment because of their position, then there exists the
likelihood that there is a violation of section 19.59. In addition to conducting themselves in an ethical way,
employees should always avoid even the appearance of impropriety.

Open Door Policy

Employees are encouraged to share their concerns, seek information, provide input, and resolve problems
through their immediate supervisor, and, as appropriate, consult with any member of management toward
those ends. Supervisors are expected to listen to employee concerns, to encouragetheir input, and to seek
resolution to their problems/issues.

Suggestions

If you have any suggestions or ideas that you feel would benefit the Village of Cambridge, we encourage
you to tell us about them. We are always looking for suggestions that improve methods, procedures and
working conditions, reduce costs or errors, and benefit the Village and its employees.

Equal Employment Opportunity Policy

It has been and shall continue to be the policy of the Village of Cambridge to recognize the competence
and ability of applicants for employment and existing employees. The Village of Cambridge will provide
equal employment opportunities to all individuals regardless of their race, age, sex, creed or religion, color,
handicap or disability, marital status, citizenship status, veteran status, membership in the National Guard
or reserves, sexual orientation, national origin, ancestry, arrest record, conviction record, or any other
characteristic protected by law. This policy applies to all employment decisions including, but not limited to,
recruitment, hiring, compensation, benefits, promotions, transfers, layoffs, and other conditions of
employment.

If you have a problem or concern in any matter relating to equal employment opportunity, please discuss
it as soon as possible with your supervisor or if that is not possible, with the Village Board. More information
about Equal Employment Opportunity is included in the employment notices in Appendix A of this manual.

Anti-Harassment Policy

Both state and federal law prohibits sex discrimination in the workplace. The Village of Cambridge is
committed to maintaining a work environment that is free of discrimination. In keeping this commitment, the
Village will not tolerate harassment of its employees by anyone, including any supervisor or co- worker.

Harassment consists of unwelcome conduct, whether verbal, physical or visual, that is based on a person'’s
protected status, such as sex, color, race, ancestry, religion, national origin, age, physical

Page 8
Employee Handbook Approved by Village Board as revised December 29, 202()



handicap, medical condition, disability, marital status, veteran status, citizenship status, sexual orientation,
arrest record, conviction record or other protected group status. The Village will not tolerate harassing
conduct that affects tangible job benefits, that interferes unreasonably with an individual's work
performance, or that creates an intimidating, hostile or offensive working environment.

You must be familiar with and comply with the Village's Anti-Harassment Policy, since all employees are
responsible for assuring that the workplace is free from any unlawful form of harassment, including
harassment on the basis of race, color, religion, handicap, marital status, gender, national origin, age,
ancestry, sexual orientation, arrest or conviction record, membership in the military reserves, or disability.

Prohibited harassment includes behavior which:

¢ Creates an intimidating, hostile or offensive work environment;
s Unreasonably interferes with an individual's work performance; or
o Otherwise adversely affects an individual's employment opportunity.

If you believe that you are being unlawfully harassed, take the following steps:

e Firmly tell the person who is harassing to immediately stop the comments and/or behaviors
which you find offensive.

¢ Ifthe harassment continues or if you believe employment consequences may result from your
request that the behavior stop, report the matter as soon as possible to the
Administrator/Clerk/Deputy Treasurer. Put the complaint in writing.

Complaints are investigated by the Police and Administrator/Clerk/Deputy Treasurer for referral to the
Personnel Committee. The Village will listen to all reasonable complaints, verify complaints, and discipline
appropriately.

False accusations of harassment may have serious adverse effects. We expect all employees to act
honestly and responsibly in complying with and enforcing this policy. It is the Village’s desire to continue
providing a pleasant work environment for all employees, free of harassment

Sexual Harassment

A specific type of harassment that is not tolerated by the Village is sexual harassment. Unwelcome sexual
advances, requests for sexual favors, or other physical, verbal or visual conduct based on sex constitute
sexual harassment when:

s« Submission to such conduct is an explicit or implicit term or condition of continued employment;

s An individual's submission to or rejection of such conduct becomes the basis for employment
decisions affecting that individual; or

e Such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual's work
performance or creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive work environment.

Sexual harassment may include, but is not limited to, explicit propositions, sexual innuendo, suggestive
comments, sexually oriented “kidding” or “teasing,” “practical jokes,” jokes about gender-specific traits,
foul or obscene language or gestures, the display of foul or obscene printed or visual material, and physical
contact such as patting, pinching or brushing against another person’s body.

It is illegal and against the Village's policy for any worker, male or female, to harass another worker or to
create a hostile working environment by either committing or encouraging any of the above, as well as:

¢ physical assaults on another employee, including but not limited to, rape, sexual battery, molestation,
or attempts to commit these assaults,

Page 9
Employee Handbook Approved by Village Board as revised December 29, 2020



« intentional physical conduct that is sexual in nature, including but not limited to, touching, pinching,
patting, or brushing up against another employee’s body; and

s unwanted sexual advances, propositions, or sexual comments, including making sexual gestures,
jokes, or comments made in the presence of any employee who has indicated that such conduct in
his or her presence is unwelcome; and

s Posting or displaying pictures, posters, calendars, graffiti, objects, or other materials that are sexual in
nature or pornographic.

The creation of an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working environment may include such actions as
persistent sexual comments or the display of obscene or sexually oriented photographs or drawings.
However, conduct or actions that arise out of a personal or social relationship and that are not intended to
have a discriminatory employment effect may not be viewed as harassment. The Village will determine
whether such conduct constitutes sexual harassment, based on a review of the facts and circumstances
of each situation.

The Village will not condone any sexual harassment of its employees. All workers, including supervisors
and managers, will be subject to severe discipline, up to and including discharge, for any act of sexual
harassment they commit.

All Village employees are responsible for helping to assure that harassment is avoided. If an employee
advises you as to a belief that he or she has experienced or witnessed harassment, you mustimmediately
report the statement to the Village Administrator/Clerk/Deputy Treasurer. Thereafter, you will be provided
with instructions as to the steps to be taken in the course of investigating the complaint. The Village forbids
retaliation against anyone who has reported harassment.

Employees who feel victimized by sexual harassment are encouraged to report the harassment to their
supervisor immediately. If the worker's immediate supervisor is the source of the alleged harassment, the
employee should report the problem to the Administrator/Clerk/Deputy Treasurer, or Village President.
Employees who witness or are aware of, any incident of suspected sexual harassment are required to
report the incident immediately, even if they are not the subject of the harassment.

Supervisors who receive a sexual harassment complaint should immediately report the complaint to the
Village President who will co-ordinate a careful investigation of the matter. As much as possible,
confidentiality will be maintained with respect to a sexual harassment complaint and only those who need
to know about such a complaint will be advised of its existence.

Employees who are dissatisfied with the initial resolution of a sexual harassment complaint may file a
complaint with an appropriate outside agency. No employee will be subject to any form of retaliation or
discipline for pursuing a sexual harassment complaint.

It is the Village of Cambridge’s policy to investigate all such complaints thoroughly and promptly and to take
all appropriate action that may be deemed necessary to end the harassment and to prevent this misconduct
from recurring. To the fullest extent practicable, the Village will keep complaints and the termsof their
resolution confidential. If an investigation confirms that harassment has occurred, the Village will take
corrective action, including such discipline, up to and including immediate termination of employment, as
is appropriate.

Immigration Reform Act Notice

It is the policy of the Village of Cambridge not to employ persons who are not legally eligible to work in the
United States.

The Immigration Referm and Control Act of 1886 requires that the Village verify the identity and the work
eligibility of all persons hired after November 6, 1986. This law will be enforced by the Immigration and
Naturalization Service and other appropriate government agencies. Any Village employee hired hereafter
will be required to sign a verification form (currently Form [-8) and furnish both proof of identity, (normally

Page 10
Emplovee Handbook Approved by Village Board as revised December 29, 2020



a driver’s license or state identification card), and proof of eligibility to work in the United States, (normally
a social security card or birth certificate).

If you have any questions about the law or about this policy, please contact your supervisor.

General Policies

Parking

Please park in designated parking areas. Your supervisor will show you the appropriate parking area to
park your vehicle.

Personal Appearance

Village employees’ dress and grooming must be appropriate to their position. Office employees often have
contact with the public and therefore represent the Village. By dressing appropriately, you help to create a
favorable image for the Village. Accordingly, you are expected to dress in a manner that is normally
acceptable in business offices

If you work in the field, wear protective clothing that is appropriate for the work that you perform. Unkempt,
torn andfor overly casual or suggestive clothing are not appropriate work clothes for administrative
employees. Dress jeans may be worn on Fridays. Dress shorts are acceptable. Shirts mustbe worn at all
times. In no circumstances may any Village employee wear any clothing upon which appears any type of
message; nor any symbol or picture which is inappropriate, lewd, or offensive to any citizen or employee.
The Village reserves the right to decide what is appropriate clothing

Solicitation or Distribution

No solicitations of any type are permitted by non-employees. You may only solicit for a nonprofit
organization, and these solicitations are only permitted to be placed in the employee break room.

The only non-work-related materials or literatures that may be posted on Village bulletin boards include
personal notices (e.g., items for sale, party announcements, etc.). Such postings may only be posted in the
employee break room.

Smoking

In recognition of a need to protect the health and comfort of the public and village employees from the
detrimental effects of smoking, pursuant to the authority granted to the village by Section 101.123(2)(c),
Wis. Stats., smoking as defined by Section 101.123(1)(h), Wis. Stats. is prohibited by any person within or
upon all buildings and enclosed equipment owned, leased or rented by the village.

Drug Free Workplace

In accordance with Federal law, employees may not unlawfully manufacture, distribute, dispense, possess
or use a controlled substance at work, while on Village property, at work locations, while on duty or subject
to being called to duty. Itis the Village’s policy to conduct random drug and alcohol testing to all employees
that may drive a Village vehicle or is listed as a driver in their job descriptions. The Village contracts with
Fort Healthcare Business Health Services to conduct random drug and alcohol testing.

If you misuse controlled substances, you may get help through an employee assistance referral program.
Regardless of participation in a program, satisfactory job performance must be maintained.

Page 11
Employee Handbook Approved by Village Board as revised December 29, 2020



Anti-Nepotism

Your family members may be considered for Village employment provided that they meet the qualifications
and their employment does not create a conflict of interest or a conflicting supervisor- employee
relationship.

No Violence in the Workplace

The Village has a zero tolerance policy against violence in the workplace or the threat of viclence. Weapons
are not allowed in the workplace or in Village vehicles, except by authorized public safety employees. You
must immediately report any workplace violence that you have received or witnessed. The Village will
investigate and attempt to verify such reports and discipline appropriately.

COMPENSATION

The Village's administrative pay plan assigns positions to pay grades with minimum and maximum rates,
based upon a systematic approach that considers how jobs compare to each other, and other
considerations, including market rates of pay, traditional pay practices and unique considerations of the
Village. The pay plan is reviewed periodically.

Exempt/Non-Exempt

The Village of Cambridge places employees into one of two classifications, based on grade level and
position, consistent with the Fair Labor Standards Act and applicable state law.

Exempt employees hold executive, administrative, professional, or other exempt positions. Exempt
employees are not eligible for overtime pay. Currently, the Clerk, Treasurer, Economic Development
Director and Library Director are the only exempt positions.

All other employees are nonexempt. Nonexempt employees are eligible for overtime pay.

Hours of Work — Flexible Work Time

The Village Office is normally open from 7:30 a.m. until 4:00 p.m., Menday through Friday. Administrative
employees may work alternate hours between the core hours of 7:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. Nighttime and
weekend hours may be required, according to job position. The goal of flex time and alternate work
schedules is to provide the maximum flexibility to you while at the same time continuing to serve the public.
The implementation of the Flex Time Program is the responsibility of the Department Heads, so check with
your supervisor in advance if you want to use flex time.

Punctuality and Attendance

You are responsible for being on time for work. When you are late or absent from work, other schedules
and public services are disrupted. When you know you are going to be late or absent, notify your supervisor
as soon as possible, preferably within thirty (30) minutes after your scheduled start time. If you do not notify
your supervisor, you may be disciplined.

Breaks
You may take a 15 minute break for every four hours that you work. To assure that there is always someone

present to serve customers, breaks are scheduled by your supervisor. If you work through your break, you
may not leave work early.

Page 12
Employee Handbook Approved by Village Board as revised December 29, 2020



Outside Employment

In most cases, the Village approves its employee’s requests for outside employment. However, such part-
time work may not interfere with your Village duties, responsibilities, and normal hours of work orovertime,
work performance, or compromise the Village's interests. Before accepting outside employment, check
with your supervisor so that there is no conflict of interest between your Village position and your outside
work.

Pay Day

Payday is every-other Thursday except holidays and you receive your paycheck during your work day.

Paychecks will be distributed to you and not to your family members or others. If you want your paycheck
to be released to someone other than you, you must give written permission to your supervisor. You may
also make a written request that your paycheck be mailed to you if you won't be present on payday. Report
a lost paycheck to your supervisor immediately.

The Village makes every effort to provide you with an accurate paycheck; however, sometimes errors are
made. If you have any questions about your pay or think that an error has been made, notify your supervisor
immediately.

Payroll Deductions

Automatic payroll deductions are made for Federal and State income tax, and social security. Each year
you receive a W-2 slip showing your total earnings for the prior year and the amount of taxes withheld.
Optional deductions such as medical benefits must be authorized by you in writing before a payroll
deduction is made. Deductions required or requested are typically as follows:

Required by Federal & State Authorized by Employee
Federal Income Tax Retirement Plan Insurance
State Income Tax Deferred Compensation
Social Security Tax Health &/or Dental Insurance
Garnishments/ Wage Attachments Flex Ben

Child Support

QOvertime and Compensatory Time

Executive, professional, and administrative employees, as defined by the Fair Labor Standards Act, are
exempt and are not eligible for overtime pay. Currently, this applies to the Clerk, Library Director, Economic
Development Director and Treasurer. Once an exempt employee has exceeded 110% of their normally
scheduled hours, they are eligible to accumulate flex/compensatory time off at straight time.The village
board acknowledges exempt staff may accumulate flex/compensatory time during the year but also want
this time to be used within 30 days of earning the time when possible. Exempt employees may use the
flex/compensatory time if proper coverage is maintained in the office without prior approval. Exempt
employees must indicate on their timesheet the use of flex/compensatory time. Any unused
flex/compensatory time will not be monetarily paid out.

All other employees are non-exempt and are eligible for overtime or compensatory pay at the rate of one
and one-half (1-1/2) hours for each one hour worked in excess of 40 hours of work during a seven-day work
pericd. If an employee works on an official holiday, he or she will be paid at the rate of one and one- half
(1%2) hours for each hour worked on the holiday. There may be times when it will be necessary for you to
work overtime. Your supervisor will notify you as early as possible regarding scheduling needs. There may
also be times when you wish to work overtime. However, prior authorization must be obtainedfrom your
supervisor before working overtime.

Page 13
Employee Handbook Approved by Village Board as revised December 29, 2020



Compensatory (“comp.”) time may be issued in lieu of pay, upon request by the employee and approval
by the employee’s supervisor. Compensatory time may accumulate to a maximum of 40 hours per year,
and must be taken by the end of the calendar year. At the end of the calendar year, any unused
compensatory time shall be paid to the employee at the rate of one and one-half times the employee's
regular pay rate at the time of payment. The use of compensatory time off must be authorized by your
supervisor. The Village may compel the use of compensatory time as appropriate.

Because of budget constraints, employee overtime should be limited to no more overtime than isabsolutely
necessary. All overtime must be authorized by your supervisor. Your cooperation in helping to keep costs
down is greatly appreciated.

Weekend On-Call Policy for Utility and Village Public Works Duties

“On call” is defined as from 3:00 p.m. on Friday until 7:00 a.m. on Monday. The Village office shall have a
schedule of on-call personnel.

The On Call employee shall remain situated within thirty (30) minutes of the Village and must have his cell
phone with him.

Employee on call shall be responsible for:
A. Routine water and sewer weekend duties
B. Any water and sewer emergencies that occur during their weekend
C. Any village emergencies that occur during their weekend

If an employee is unable to work his scheduled weekend, it is his responsibility te find a replacement and
notify the Village Office of any changes made to the schedule.

Water & Sewer Weekend Duties

Routine Duties include the following:
A. Water Treatment Facility

a. Disarm intrusion alarm when entering building.

b. Record flow readings from Main, #1 Softener, #2 Softener and bypass meters.

c. Check digital readout of tower level. Well pump turns on at 20.0 feet and off at 25.0
feet. If above or below those settings, determine the cause of the problem and
resolve.

d. Record the pounds of chlorine usage and make sure both Chlorine and Fluoride
tanks are not empty. If well pump is running, make certain that the chemical pumps
are also NOT running.

e. Check the salt room to make sure that there is adequate salt in the salt tank to make
brine. Fill tank if necessary.

f.  Prior to leaving the building, turn intrusion alarm on and turn off all lights. Make
certain doors are locked.

B. Check Lift Station A in the park and Kenseth Lift Station as needed.

C. Open Gate on Lagoon Road at 8 AM and close at noon on Saturday, unless otherwise
directed.

On Call Compensation

Employee shall be compensated for one and a half (1 %) hours for Saturday and one and a half (1 %)
hours for Sunday duties listed above at their pay scale. Employee shall be paid time and half. Employee
can claim two hours minimum for emergency calls during the on-call period. All emergency work shall be

Page 14
Employee Handbook Approved by Village Board as revised December 29, 2020)



written up and turned into the Village office with time in and time out listed. Employee shall also be
compensated “on-call pay” at the rate of $18 per day for Saturday and Sunday.

Weekend Hours Policy for Amundson Community Center Maintenance Employee(s)

“On call weekend hours” are generally defined as from 3:00 p.m. on Friday until 7:00 a.m. on Monday.
Exact hours are determined by the activities scheduled at the Amundson Community Center during that
time period.

The weekend on-call employee shall remain situated within thirty (30) minutes of the Village and must
have his/her cell phone with them.

Employee on call shall be responsible for:

Opening locked room and building doors as needed

Closing and locking rcom and building doors as needed

Any emergencies that occur during the scheduled activities time
Set up of room and/or tables and chairs as needed
Replacement of room and/or tables and chairs as needed
Clean up of room if not done by renter

mmoow>

If an employee is unable to work their scheduled weekend, it is their responsibility to find a replacement
and notify the Village Office of any changes made to the schedule.

Weekend Compensation

Employee shall be compensated at time and one and a half (1 %) hourly wage rate for weekend on-call
duties listed above at their pay scale. Employee can claim half-hour minimum charge per trip.

Time Card or Time Record

Federal law requires that non-exempt employees keep accurate records of the time you work and time that
you take off, either on a time card or time record. Employees are expected to record when they report for
work and record the end of their scheduled shift unless overtime work has been approved. Any time an
employee leaves work they are required to document the time they leave and when they return.

Employees are to keep a daily log, including hours worked and the department for which the work was
done, so as to ensure that time is charged to the proper account. The work summary should be submitted
to your supervisor at the end of each pay period, in order to ensure proper recording of your time and to
expedite the issuance of your paycheck. The work week is Monday through Friday, with pay day on Friday.
Pay day is bi-weekly with one week’s pay withheld.

All employees are required to maintain time sheets and related materials. Employees must indicate on their
timesheet any benefit time used during the pay period. No employee is allowed to record time on another
employee’s time sheet. Violation of these rules may result in disciplinary action up to and including
discharge.

Wage Increases (General Wage Increase and Merit Pay)

In accordance with Village policy, you may receive a general wage increase each year on January 1, as
recommended by the Treasurer and approved by the Personnel Committee, subject to Village Board
funding.

To reward excellent job performance, a new or promoted employee is eligible to receive a merit pay
increase after a six-month job performance review. Thereafter, you are eligible to receive an annual merit
pay increase based upon your annual job performance evaluation.

Page 15
Emplovee Handbook Approved by Village Board as revised December 29, 2020



Uniforms and Equipment

Public Works and Water & Sewer employees may be provided with uniforms for their use while performing
their duties as Village employees upon their request, and are provided with appropriate personal protective
equipment as needed for particular tasks. Employees will be provided with coats which identify them as
Village employees. A uniform allowance of $100 annually per employee will be provided toward clothing
and/or shoes upon submission of receipt of purchase to the Treasurer. They arealso expected to wear the
appropriate personal protective equipment necessary for adequate safety whenperforming particular tasks.
We want our employees to work safely. If you feel a particular task requires additional personal protective
equipment, notify your supervisor.

Paid Time Off

All leaves of absence benefits are approved by the Personnel Committee and are subject to Village Board
funding and approval.

Holidays

Holiday pay will not be counted as time worked for purposes of determining entitiement to overtime pay.
Holiday pay will be paid as straight time.

Employees receive the following 11 paid holidays per year. Each day equals eight hours. Library employees
may have alternative holiday hours.

New Year's Day

Memorial Day

Independence Day

Laber Day

Thanksgiving Day

Day after Thanksgiving
Christmas Eve Day
Christmas Day

Floating Holidays (three days)

As a general practice, if an observed holiday falls on a Saturday, the preceding Friday will be recognized
as the official holiday. If the observed holiday falls on a Sunday, the following Monday will be recognized
as the official holiday. To receive holiday pay, you must work on the last scheduled day prior to the holiday
and the first scheduled day after the holiday, unless your absence is approved in advance by your
supervisor.

Upon employment with the village you are eligible for the three (3) floating holidays. These holidays will be
pro-rated based on your employment date for your first year of employment. Floating holidays are
scheduled through your supervisor, and may be taken in 4-hour increments. Floating holidays may not be
carried over into the next calendar year any unused floating holidays will not be monetarily paid out.

Part-time employees that work 15 hours per week receive holiday and floating holiday pay on a pro-rated
basis. Employees that work 20 hours or more per week receive holiday pay and floating holiday pay on a
prorated basis depending on normally scheduled work days that would fall on their normally scheduled
work day. For example, if an employee works 20 hours per week, he would receive one-half day’s pay
for a holiday. An employee who works 30 hours per week would get a three-quarter day's pay for a
holiday that falls on their normally scheduled work day. .

If the employee has not been with the Village for one year, they will be paid on a prorated estimate of total
hours that will be worked. If an employee was hired for 20 hours a week, they will be paid 4 hours for
holiday pay that falls on their normally scheduled work day.

Page 16
Employvee Handbook Approved by Village Board as revised December 29, 2020



As established by the Library beard, library employees may have alternative holiday hours and holiday
pay schedule.

Vacation

We believe that you should have a period of rest and relaxation each year. The amount of your vacation
is determined by the number of full years of service that you have completed.

Vacation for new employees is prorated from the date of hire to the end of the calendar year.
Vacation is not counted as time worked for purposes of determining overtime pay.

Vacation is scheduled through your supervisor. You may take vacation in increments of four hours. The
schedule of the vacation benefit is:

¢ Upon hiring 5 days

s After one year of service 10 days
s After five years of service 15 days
¢ After ten years of service 20 days
o After twenty years of service 25 days

Part-time employees receive vacation pay based on the total number of hours that they work in
comparison with total hours worked by a full-time employee. For example, if an employee who works 40
hours per week gets 10 days of vacation, and employee who works 20 hours would get 5 days of
vacation. An employee who works 30 hours per week would get 7.5 days.

All vacation requests are approved by the Clerk. It is policy that at least one and preferably two
employees must be in the office and at least one and preferably two public works/utility employees must
be “in the field” each regular weekday, except under special circumstance as approved by the Village
Board and/or Personnel Committee, such as training. Vacation is typically approved on a first come basis,
but approval is at the discretion of the Clerk and/or Department Supervisor. Appeals regarding vacation
requests may be made to the Personnel Committee. Unused vacation time will be paid out at 100% at
the end of the calendar year.

Sick Leave

Full-time employees accrue one sick day per month. You may accumulate sick leave up to 1,000 hours.
At the end of the calendar year during which you accrued more than 1,000 sick hours, you will be paid a
daily rate for each sick day more than 1,000 hours. Sick leave is charged at a minimum increment of two
hours. If you use a sick day, you must call in and notify your supervisor as soon as possible. Part-time
employees are not eligible for this benefit.

Sick leave, not other time off, is meant to be used when you are sick. Your supervisor may ask you to
present a doctor’s note, or other evidence of iliness. If you are sick more than three days in a row, you must
get a medical slip signed by your doctor authorizing you to return to work. You may use sick leavefor the
care of your child’s minor iliness if alternative care is not available. Sick leave is a privilege and nota right.
If you abuse this privilege, you will be subject to disciplinary action.

Upon retirement, and after working for the Village for at least 10 years, employees may be compensated
for up to 1,000 hours of accumulated sick leave. Such compensation will be paid into a Post Employment
Health Plan with North Shore Bank as approved by the board January 2016. The Village will apply the
accumulated sick leave at full value of one day pay per day of accumulated sick time.

Page 17
Emplovee Handbook Approved by Village Board as revised December 29, 2020



Jury Duty

If you are called to jury duty, you will be granted a paid leave of absence from the Village. You must turn
in your jury check except for expenses incurred for travel and meals.

The Village of Cambridge policy is to encourage employees to serve on jury panels. An employee should
inquire about the duration of the jury trial in advance of accepting such service.

Full-time employees who are requested to serve on jury duty or to answer a court order as a witness will
be granted a paid leave of absence from the Village. Employees who exercise this benefit shall be required
to provide their supervisor with a copy of the court order as soon as possible after it has been served. Proof
of court service and compensation will be required, so employees should retain all receipts which verify
their court appearance. All compensation received, excluding mileage and meals, for court duty by full-time
employees is to be turned over to the Village. Part-time employees may be rescheduledin order to
accommodate scheduled jury dates and will not be compensated by the Village. Part-time employees
however, are able to retain all compensation received for appearance at jury duty. Any timean employee's
attendance is not required for purposes of jury duty or witness service during their regularly scheduled
work hours, the employee is required to report to work as soon as circumstances will reasonably allow.

Pursuant to Section 103.87 of Wisconsin State Statutes, employers may not discharge an employee for
being absent frem work in order to appear in court pursuant to a subpoena to testify in a civil or criminal
case. If the case involves the employer, the employer may not withhold the employee’s pay for time away
from work for such court appearances.

Military Leave of Absence

An employee who is drafted for service in the armed forces or is a reservist called up for active duty is
eligible for military leave of absence. Such military leave of absence is governed by the Uniformed Services
Employment and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994 (USERRA) and Wisconsin state law.

An employee whose absence from work with the Village is required by reason of service in the uniformed
services is entitled to the reemployment rights and benefits under USERRA if the employee meets the
following criteria for eligibility:

* The employee gives the employer advance written or verbal notice of the service (no notice is
required if military necessity prevents notice from being given or if, under all of the
circumstances, giving such notice is impossible or unreasonable); and

» The cumulative length of the absence and of all previous absences from work with the Village by
reason of service in the uniformed services does not exceed five years; and

s The employee has not been dishonorably discharged or separated from the uniformed service
under other than honorable conditions; and

¢ The employee reports to, or submits an application for reemployment to the Village within the
time periods allowed by USERRA.

The time periods for applying for reemployment are based on the employee’s length of military service. For
service of less than thirty-one (31) days, the service member must return at the beginning of the next
regularly scheduled work period on the first full day after release from service, taking into account sufficient
time for safe travel home plus an eight-hour rest period. For service of more than thirty (30) days but less
than one hundred eighty-one (181) days, the service member must apply for reemployment within fourteen
(14) days of being released from service. For service of more than one hundred eighty

(180) days, the member must apply for reemployment within 90 days of being released from service.

Failure to apply for reemployment within the specified time periods does not automatically forfeit the service
member’s entitlement to reemployment, but subjects the person to the Village's general practices pertaining
to explanations and discipline with respect to absence from scheduled work.

Page 18
Employee Handbook Approved by Village Board as revised December 29, 202()



An employee who is a member of the Armed Forces Reserve or the National Guard and who is required
to attend annual active duty for training or other short-term (two weeks or less) reserve or Guard duty (i.e.
forest fire fighting, police duty for natural disaster, etc.) is eligible for a military leave of absence. Such
time off will not be considered vacation time. If the employee’s military pay for the training is less than
his/her average Village earnings for a like period, the Village of Cambridge will pay the difference to the
employee for a period not exceeding two (2) weeks.

There are additional rights, responsibilities and benefits associated with federal and Wisconsin state law
regarding military leave. Employees who are currently, or are likely to become, members of the uniformed
services should contact the Village Administrator/Clerk/Deputy Treasurer for more details.

Employees that are Volunteer Emergency Service Providers

The Village encourages employees to volunteer to serve on local Emergency Medical Services (EMS) or
the Volunteer Fire Department; however the following guide lines and rules shall apply:

1. Any employee responding to an emergency call will be paid for regular hours, but overtime hours
will not be paid. Any additional work required shall be completed in the same day, without incurring
overtime unless the Village work exceeds 8 hours and if the total time for the week exceeds 40
hours of regular time. Additional work beyond 8 hours in a day or 40 hours a week is applied only
if the work is necessary for the general good of all Village Residents.

2. The employee shall not respond to any emergency call if the interruption in their work would be
affected or become hazardous or detrimental to leave unattended. This would include open
manholes, unprotected road hazards such as holes or excavations, sewer backups, or any such
hazard or situation that could cause harm to any Village Resident or the public in general.

3. Injuries: Any injuries as a result of any action or function related to the volunteer emergency service
function shall be covered by the emergency services insurance policy and not theVillage's
insurance. This includes workmen's compensation and any other related insurance claims. The
Village insurance coverage stops as soon as the page to respond is received and itis required
that the employee must safely leave their current Village responsibilities and Village insurance
coverage will not resume until the employee is back to Village work. This includes traveling to or
from the emergency call.

4. It shall be stressed that the Village employees’ first responsibility is to his/her work for the Village
and they shall only respond to emergency, or non-emergency calls, when it becomes apparent (a
second page) that additional help will be required or needed to handle the emergency call, or that
leaving their current Village work would not be detrimental to the village.

Funeral Leave

You will be granted up to three days off with pay to attend the funeral of:

¢ Your spouse, parents, step-parents, children, step children, legal guardian, grandchildren,
grandparents, brother, sister;

e Mother-in-law, father-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law;

s Your spouse's children, grandparents, and grandchildren.

.Leave of Absence

Other necessary leaves are available, such as general leave (including maternity leave). Requests for
any leave of absence must be written and submitted in advance to the Clerk and reviewed and approved
by the Personnel Committee.

Page 19
Employee Handbook Approved by Village Board as revised December 29, 2020



Family and Medical Leave of Absence

While the federal and state family and medical leave laws typically apply only to employers with 50 or more
employees, itis the intent of the Village of Cambridge to consider the employees of the Village of Cambridge
to be covered by both the federal and state Family/Medical Leave Laws. Because the lawsare complex,
you should discuss your particular needs with the Clerk as soon as a leave is anticipated.

Generally, federal Family and Medical Leave requires that employers provide eligible employees, upon
request, up to twelve weeks of unpaid leave upon the birth, adoption or serious iliness of a child, the serious
illness of a parent or spouse or the employee's own illness. You must provide 30 days notice of foreseeable
leaves based upon an expected birth or adoption and 30 days notice of other Family and Medical leave or
as much notice as practical. Health benefits are continued during this pericd, and, under some
circumstances, you are returned to your former position upon completion of the leave. While Familyand
Medical leave is unpaid leave, you may request (or the Village may require you) to substitute vacation pay
or other accumulated leave for this time off.

Under state law, you may receive six weeks of unpaid leave for the birth or adoption of a child, or two weeks
for the serious health condition of a child, parent or spouse or your own serious health condition. You may
substitute vacation pay or other accumulated leave for this time off, and unlike federal law, the Village
cannot require you to substitute your accumulated leave. You will be returned to your former position upon
completion of state law leave. Where state and federal law conflict, you will be given the more generous of
the two provisions.

FRINGE BENEFITS

Medical Benefits

Depending upon plan participation levels, full-time employees may enroll with the Village’s Health
Maintenance Organization (HMO), which is currently Dean Health System. Employees will be informed at
each dual plan enroliment if participation levels allow for additional HMO enrollment. The Village pays 88%
of the employee, spouse and dependent premium and effective January 1, 2016 employee spouse and
adult dependent children will pay an additional $50.00 per month towards the premium in addition to the
12% contribution. Premium contributions will be divided over 26 pay periods and will be a payroll deduction.

A new employee will be eligible for coverage the 15t of the month following 30 days after the date of hire.
The Village has the right to change plan carriers, alter benefits, and add cost containment measures to
the medical care plans as it deems necessary. Employee benefits are ultimately guided by the handbook
and provider plan policies currently in place.

Effective January 1, 2016 any active employee or employee spouse who reaches the age of 65 and enrolls
in Medicare will be reimbursed their premium amount for the supplemental insurance premium anddental
insurance premium monthly. Employees must provide proof of insurance and premium before the
reimbursement will be paid. The reimbursement will be included in the bi-weekly payroll check and will be
paid over 26 pay periods annually. Adult dependent children or spouse may continue on the village health
insurance if the employee is Medicare eligible. The contribution rate will be determined annually by the
Personnel Committee.

Regular part-time employees who normally are expected to work at least 30 hours per week are eligible for
health benefits as required under 1995 Wisconsin Act 289.. You may decline medical benefits if you have
coverage elsewhere.

Page 20
Emplayee Handbook Approved by Village Board as revised December 29, 2020



Dental Benefits

The Village provides a dental benefit program. These benefits are available to full-time employees and are
as described in the dental insurance company's policy manual. A new employee will be eligible for coverage
on the first of the month after 30 days of hire. . Effective January 1, 2017, the village will pay 88% of the
dental premium employees will pay 12% of the premium. Premium contributions will be divided over 26
pay periods and will be a payroll deduction. The Village has the right to change plan carriers, alter benefits,
and add cost containment measures to the dental care plan as it deems necessary. Employee benefits are
ultimately guided by the handbock and provider plan policies currently in place. Our Dental Plan also
includes vision coverage.

Flexible Spending Plan

Full-time and regular part-time employees who work at least 20 hour per week may participate in the
Flexible Spending Plan. Participants must be at least 18 years of age. This is a plan that allows specific
employee expenses to be paid with pre-tax wages, effectively increasing the employee’s spendable income.
Expenses may be applied within three accounts: Insurance Premiums Account, Dependent Care Account,
and Medical Expense Account. Contributions to Medical Expense Accounts are limited to $3000 each year.
Effective January 1, 2016 funds of $500 or less will be allowed to carry over into the next plan period.

New employees may participate the first of the month following 30 days of employment. Continuing
employees must enroll annually, at the calendar year. Participating employees should be fully aware of the
rights and limitations within the plan.

This plan is administered subject to the rules of the IRS. Plan information is available from the /Clerk.

Term Life Insurance

Employees who are eligible to participate in the Wisconsin Retirement System are also eligible to
participate in a Group Term Life Insurance offered through the Wisconsin Department of Employee Trust
Funds. The Village of Cambridge will pay premiums for Basic Group Life Insurance on behalf of
participating employees. Supplemental and additional coverage is also available at the employee’s own
cost. Deductions for supplemental and additional coverage will be made through the employee’s
paycheck.

Retirement Benefits — Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS)

The Village participates in the Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS). The WRS is a multi-employer
qualified retirement system under Section 401 (a) of the IRS code. It is a hybrid pension plan with both
defined benefit and defined contribution components.

This benefit is available to full-time employees and to part-time employees who are expected to work a
minimum of 1,200 hours per year and are expected to be employed for at least one year from date of hire.
All new hires will be evaluated for eligibility and will be automatically enrolled if the participation criteria
are met. To enroll, two forms must be competed. A Wisconsin Retirement System Enroliment form (ET-
2316) and Election to Participate in the Variable Trust Fund (ET-2356).

Contributions to the WRS plan begin on the first day you are eligible for coverage. Contribution rates to the
WRS plan are set by statute and are calculated as a percentage of covered salary. WRScontribution rate
changes are evenly distributed between the employer and employee rates. 2011 Wisconsin Acts 10 and
32 require that each contribution rate be evenly divided between the Employer- Required Contribution
(ERRC) and the Employee-Required Contribution (EERC) for General category employees.

Page 21
Employee Handbook Approved by Village Board as revised December 29, 2020



For more information, please see the benefit handbook from the Department of Employee Trust Funds or
visit their website: http://etf.wi.gov/fag/wrs.htm

In addition, the Village matches your Social Security contribution.

Wisconsin Deferred Compensation and Income Continuation are also available through the Employee
Trust Fund.

Retiree Medical Benefits

Retired regular employees are permitted to retain health insurance at their sole expense after retirement
and until eligible for Medicare or until they secure comparable coverage from a successor employer, if the
insurer permits. The retired employee shall make monthly payments of the premium due to the Village
Treasurer.

Upon retirement, an employee may continue to participate in group health insurance coverage provided
by the Village of Cambridge, subject to contractual provisions; however, the fact that the employee has a
spouse whose employment makes that employee eligible for group health insurance coverage provided
by the other employer, shall under no circumstances disqualify an employee who has retired from
continuing in his or her participation in group health insurance coverage provided by the Village.

Upon retirement, and after working for the Village for at least 10 years, employees may receive pay for up
to 1,000 hours of accumulated sick leave. This sick leave pay must be used for extended health insurance
coverage and will be deposited into the employees Post Employee Health Plan with North Shore Bank as
approved by the Village Board in January 2016. The Village will apply your accumulated sick leave at full
value of one day’s pay per day of accumulated sick leave and deposit this into the Post Employment Health
Plan with North Shore Bank.

If a retiree ceases being a participant in the Village's health insurance program after retirement and, prior
to becoming eligible for Medicare, is eligible to return to the Village's plan, the retiree will be required to
submit evidence of insurability for the retiree and any dependents; and, any return to participation is subject
to a waiver of coverage for pre-existing conditions.

COBRA Act

In accordance with the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA), if you presently receive
group medical and dental insurance coverage through the Village, you may continue receiving these
benefits for up to 18 months after you leave Village employment. In some circumstances, you may be
eligible to receive continued coverage for up to 36 months after you leave Village employment. You must
pay the premiums for such coverage. Contact the Village Administrator/Clerk/Deputy Treasurer for more
information about this benefit.

Tuition Reimbursement and Training

Employee Orientation and Training

After you are hired, you will participate in an orientation program to help familiarize you with the Village
and your new job.

Employee Training

The Village provides in-house and outside training programs, as necessary. Your supervisor is responsible
for recommending you for training programs, conferences, seminars, workshops, on-the-job training, and
for assigning on-the-job trainers. Training will be conducted during normal working hours whenever
practical.

Page 22
Employee Handbook Approved by Village Board as revised December 29, 2020



Training-Related Travel

For outside training programs (e.g., conferences, seminars, workshops and other short-term training
programs), that you attend, reasonable and related travel, meal, and lodging expenses will also be paid,
but not for alcoholic beverages. Mileage will be reimbursed at the IRS rate.

Tuition and Book Reimbursement

If you take a University or Technical School course that is job related, the Village will reimburse full-time
employees for tuition and book expenses for approved courses after satisfactory course completion. A final
grade of “C” or better will be considered successful completion. The course must first be approved byyour
department head and approval will depend on your Department’s training budget fund availability. Tuition
may not be paid for more than two courses at any one time. The Village may retain the books for use in the
department library, or may let you keep them.

Part-time employees normally working at least 20 hours per week are eligible for 50% tuition reimbursement
for satisfactory completion of a direct job-related class.

CONDUCT

As a Village employee, you are expected to behave in a proper, ethical manner at all times. Departments
may have a comprehensive set of work rules that govern on-the-job behavior and manner of job
performance. You should be familiar with your Department’'s work rules. The following guidelines are
intended to serve as general examples of inappropriate behavior for which you may be disciplined, and so,
the list is not comprehensive of all improper behaviors.

¢ Incompetence or inefficiency.

« Offensive conduct.

Insubordination or violation of any official order or regulation. Insubordination is defined as failure
or deliberate refusal to obey an order by a superior, ridiculing a superior or a superior's orders,
whether in or out of the presence of a superior.

Accepting tips or gifts in the course of work.

Conviction of a criminal offense involving moral turpitude or depravity.

Negligent, or willful damage, or waste of public property.

Inexcusable absences without being granted leave.

Bringing, possessing, being under the influence of intoxicants, or using intoxicants, or the
consumption of alcoholic beverages or controlled substances while on duty or subject to duty.
Harassment of any employee because of sex, race, religion, physical disability, or any other
legally protected group status.

Engaging in outside employment while on any leave of absence.

Engaging in fraudulent use of a leave of absence.

Claiming sick leave under false pretenses.

Excessive or chronic absenteeism or tardiness.

Failure to notify your supervisor in advance when you will be absent from work or are unable to
report for work on time.

Failure to comply with employee’s specific department rules.

Failure to conform to assighed work hours.

Falsification or misuse of time cards, time sheets, records, or assisting in such falsification.

Theft or misappropriation of Village property or another employee’s property.

Provoking, instigating, or involvement in fighting on the job, or on Village property. Threatening or
carrying out acts of violence to an employee, supervisor, Village official, or visitor.

s Sleeping on the job.

* Violation of the Employee Handbook.

¢« Working unauthorized overtime.

] * & & o @

Page 23
Emplovee Handbook Approved by Village Board as revised December 29, 2020



Possessing weapons or explosives of any type on Village property without Village authorization.
Deliberately restricting work output or encouraging another employee to do so.

lllegal, immoral, offensive or indecent conduct during the workday or on Village property.

Failure to comply with the Village Safety Program.

Using profanity or abusive language.

Any other activity which is not compatible with good public service.

Rude behavior toward a member of the general public or other Village employees.

Lying or attempting to withhold information from a supervisor.

Any other action or activity which results in a loss of public trust or affects any Village employee’s
ability to perform his/her duties as a Village employee.

Discipline and Discharge

Employees are considered at-will employees and serve at the discretion of the Village Board of Trustees.
The Village's determination to discipline, including discharge of employment, an employee is final and
may be without cause. The at-will policy shall not be modified by any statements made to you or materials
given to you.

Progressive discipline will be administered by the Village, at its sole discretion. The steps of progressive
discipline include, in order of severity:

Oral warning from Supervisor or Personnel Committee

Written warning from Supervisor or Personnel Committee

Meeting with employee, supervisor, and others as determined by the Personnel Committee.
Suspension from Personnel Committee

Recommendation to Village Board for termination of employee from Personnel Committee
Termination from employment from Village Board

O kG- M

Complaints

If you have a complaint regarding your employment with the Village, report the complaint to the Village
President who will make a recommendation to the Personnel Committee for action.

Evaluations
The purpose of a job performance evaluation is to recognize good job performance or work to improve it,

review the past year's accomplishments, and plan the next year's major projects. The evaluation reminds
you of job expectations and alerts your supervisor to concerns that you may have.

Six Month Review

After six months in a new position, your job performance will be evaluated by your supervisor.

Yearly Review

After a 6-month review, your job performance will be evaluated each year. You will receive a copy of the
review and have the opportunity, if you wish, to include a written statement which will be made part of your
file.

Good Communication

Good communication is essential to the successful operation of any organization. Do not hesitate to
advise your supervisor of:

Page 24
Employee Handbook Approved by Village Board as revised December 29, 202()



* Problems that make your job performance difficult;
+ Misunderstood expectations; and/or
+ Your suggestions to improve work conditions, etc.

Just as you appreciate knowing what goes on at their levels, your supervisors want to know how their

decisions affect you. If you are uncomfortable speaking with your supervisor about your concerns, you may
discuss them with the Village Administrator/Clerk/Deputy Treasurer.

Job Postings

Position announcements are posted on employee bulletin boards.

Demotions

A demotion is defined as a move to a different job in a lower pay range. If you are demoted through no fault
of your own (e g., elimination of position), you will maintain the same salary. If you apply for a lower range

job and receive it, then your pay will not exceed the salary maximum of the new position. If you are demoted
for disciplinary reasons, then your salary will be determined by the Personnel Committee.

Access to Village Property

You do not have a right to privacy when using Village offices, file cabinets, desks, lockers, and other Village
property and facilities. Although the Village does not prohibit you from bringing personal items to work, (e.g.,
family pictures, plants, etc.) you should not bring them if you do not want them exposed to thepublic. You
alse do not have a right to privacy regarding the Internet sites you access or e-mails you write. E-mails are
considered open, permanent records under the law. If you would not want them to be seen, then don't click
on the web sites or write the e-mails. E-mails considered public records shall notbe deleted unless they
have been archived on a CD or printed and properly filed and stored.

Close and lock all doors, windows and other Village property as identified by your supervisor (e.g., file
cabinets, desks) in your work area at the end of the work day.

Use of Village Equipment and Supplies

You are responsible for proper operation, care, and conservation of Village equipment, tools, and supplies.
You must report any accidents, breakdowns, malfunctions or thefts immediately so that necessary repairs
or investigations may be made. You may not use Village equipment and supplies for unauthorized or
personal purposes, including photocopying equipment. The guidelines below are intended to serve as a
general example for which you may be disciplined regarding the use of Village equipment and supplies.
The following are prohibited actions:

* Negligent, willful damage, waste or loss of public property;

s Theft or misappropriation of Village property or ancther employee’s property;

» Any other action or activity that results in a loss of public trust or affects any employee’s
ability to perform his/her duties as a Village employee.

Use of Village-Owned Vehicles

Village trucks will be provided to designated employees by the Village of Cambridge for work. They are not
to be used for personal reasons or errands. It is the employee’s responsibility to keep the trucks in good
working order and to report any problems immediately. The trucks are to be neat and orderly, inside and
out, at all times. It is the employee’s responsibility to wash and clean the truck they are responsible for, as
time allows. Each employee will be responsible for keeping the truck (they use the most) organized,
stocked and fueled. Gas tanks are required to be more than one-quarter full and supplies are to be stocked.

Page 25
Emplayee Handbook Approved by Village Board as revised December 29, 2021)



Village trucks are to be driven in a responsible manner at all times. Speeding, reckless driving, etc., will not
be tolerated. Remember that our name is on the truck. It is your driver’s license and your fine, if you are
stopped for a violation other than equipment safety.

You should make regular visual checks of your truck for scratches, scrapes and dents. Any problems should
be reported to your supervisor immediately. A police report must be filled out at the scene of an accident if
there is substantial damage requiring repair. If damage is due to employee’s negligence, employee shall
be responsible for payment of insurance deductible for repairs.

The Village of Cambridge enforces a “clean truck” policy. Random inspections may take place.

It is the employee’s responsibility to provide self-transportation to work. “On-call” service personnel are
excluded. Trucks may not leave the jobsite once set up for purposes of retrieving lunch, soda, snacks,
etc. Employees must wear seat belts at all times while using a Village vehicle.

It is the employee’s responsibility to make sure the trucks are completely locked up. The keys are to be
returned to the office when the truck is not in use.

Village vehicles are valuable property and you may only drive them to conduct Village business. Personal
use of a Village vehicle is never authorized, since such use creates unnecessary liability exposure to the
Village and hurts the reputation of the Village and other employees.

If you drive a Village vehicle, then you must have a valid Wisconsin driver’s license. You are expected to
drive the Village vehicle in a safe and courteous manner, consistent with the Village Safety Program. While
driving, you must obey all traffic laws, rules, and regulations, including wearing seat belts. You will be
responsible for all parking and traffic tickets you receive while driving a Village vehicle. If you have an
accident, report it in accordance with the Village Safety Program.

If using a personal vehicle for Village-related travel, you must document mileage and reason for travel to
receive a reimbursement at the IRS mileage rate.

Federal Controlled Substances and Alcohol Use and Testing Rules for Employees with Commercial
Driver’s Licenses (CDL’s)

In accordance with Wisconsin Department of Transportation rules, employees who possess a CDL and
are using a vehicle for which a CDL is required will be required to have testing for drugs and alcohol if
they are involved in any on-the-job accident that causes a fatality, personal injury, involves tow-away
damage, or in which the driver is ticketed. Alcohol tests must be administered within eight hours of the
incident. Drug tests must be administered within 32 hours after the incident.

If a CDL is required for your position with the village, the village will pay for your license and any
renewals. Reimbursement will be processed when a receipt of payment and copy of new license is
received in the Clerk’s office.

Tools and Equipment

Employees are required to keep tools and equipment in good working order. Quality hand tools are essential
in doing proficient work as well as showing a professional appearance. Specialized equipment provided by
the Village of Cambridge must be well maintained by the employee. All Village-owned equipment that is
abused, poorly maintained, or lost by the employee will be replaced by the Village of Cambridge at the
employee’s expense.

Page 26
Employee Handbook Approved by Village Board as revised December 29, 202()



The hand tools shall be readily mobile, as switching trucks is sometimes necessary to complete different
jobs.

Mobile Phones/Radios/Pagers

Cellular telephones, radios and pagers are for Village of Cambridge business only. Cell phones should be
used at a minimum. The use of our mobile phones is restricted to business only and is prohibited for any
other use, except in the event of an emergency situation.

Employees are required to have their pagers and cell phones activated and on their person during business
hours.

Telephcne bills are monitored and the employee will be charged for any unauthorized use. If cell
telephones, radios or pagers are lost, the employee will be responsible for payment for replacements.

Telephone Use

Your work comes first. Personal telephone calls result in inconvenience to other callers and/or loss of
valuable work time. Telephones are intended for Village business and not for personal use except in cases
of emergency or other specific personal business that cannot be conducted during non-working hours.

The Village encourages employees to use personal “calling cards” when placing a long distance telephone
call that is non-business related. Personal phone calls should be kept to a minimum and shouldnot interfere
with an employee’s productivity.

ELECTRONIC EQUIPMENT POLICY

General

The Village relies heavily upon the copier, computer system, and facsimile machine for everyday
operations. These pieces of equipment are available for the purpose of completing Village business and
are not intended for personal use. There will be instances when an employee may need the use of a piece
of equipment for personal use. In these circumstances, fees as established by the Village Board shall be
paid to the Village Treasurer.

Internet and E-Mail

The Village expects that its staff will use the Internet system and e-mail in a responsible manner.
Accordingly, the Village has established rules governing staff's use in accessing these systems. Staff must
realize that use of this electronic information resource is a privilege, not a right. Supervisors must ensure
that their employees understand that violations of these rules will result in appropriate disciplinary action,
up to and including discharge.

Privacy

Any use of the Village of Cambridge's computer networks by an employee constitutes a waiver of any right
to privacy concerning such use. This includes personal communications. The Village of Cambridge
exercises the right to review, audit, intercept, and disclese all communications on Cambridge’s networks
at any time without prior notice to employees. If the user wishes confidentiality, he or she must use privately
owned equipment and private access to such information services.

Page 27
Employee Handbook Approved by Village Board as revised December 29, 2020



Software

The Village of Cambridge has the exclusive right to install all software used on the Village's computer
networks. The installation of any software on the Village's computer networks and workstations during work
time or personal time without the express approval of the Village Board is prohibited. The Village of
Cambridge will remove all unauthorized software from its servers or workstations. The Village of Cambridge
will monitor software use by employees for licensing purposes and to protect against viruses and
unauthorized use of Village servers or workstations by third parties. It is the policy of the Village of
Cambridge to prohibit any employee from copying copyright protected computer software for use on any
computer, whether the software is owned by the Village of Cambridge or owned by an individual.

Data

All data, whether on a server or on a workstation, is the property of the Village of Cambridge. It is against
Village policy for an employee to purposefully delete or modify the work product of another Village employee
without the consent of the employee that created the work product. For the purpose of this policy, work
product means any compilation of data, analyses, reports or correspondence selected, coordinated, or
arranged by an employee.

Security

The Village of Cambridge will provide each employee who needs access to the Village's computer networks
with a unique user identification to gain access to the Village’s computer networks. Authorized users of the
networks will also be required to enter a password to gain access to their individual and shared areas on
the network servers and other information resources located on the networks.

Monitoring Communications and Software Use

All communications and data on the computer networks may be public records subject to disclosure
under the state open records law, with certain exceptions. All communications on and uses of the Village's
networks or applications of any licensed software program installed in a workstation or server during work
or personal time may be monitored from time to time. Village employees should be aware that any such
communications and other uses of the networks are not private and the Village reserves and may exercise
the right to access and disclose all messages on the networks at any time with or without prior notice to the
employee.

Data Storage

The Village of Cambridge shall be responsible for organizing all data on the Village computer networks in
a manner that will allow users to readily access files and other information on the networks.

The Village shall further establish procedures or protocols governing the deletion and retention of all data
on the networks, including the development of record retention schedules.

While the Village will be responsible for disaster recovery and back up of all data on Village servers, the
Village of Cambridge’s authorized users on the computer networks are responsible for protecting data or
information maintained locally at their workstation. This includes backing up data on individual workstations
to ensure that data saved on individual workstations conforms to established record retention schedules
and that such data is available to authorized users during the appropriate retention periods.

E-Mail

The content and maintenance of the Village's electronic mail and shared file storage areas are the user's
responsibility. Authorized users should follow standard business etiquette in using this medium.

Page 28
Employvee Handbook Approved by Village Board as revised December 29, 2020



Village of Cambridge employees should be aware that electronic mail messages sent within the Village's
networks or on the Internet using Village computer equipment are not private communications and that all
e-mail messages are the property of the Village of Cambridge. The Village reserves the right to access,
reviews, and disclose all e-mail messages. Village staff should regard all e-mail messages as non-private
communications that may be viewed by others.

Employees using e-mail should delete unwanted messages or files immediately in order to preserve disk
storage space. Alternatively, users should transfer to disks or hard drives any e-mail messages or filesthe
user wants to save. Some communications must be retained as an official record of Village business. If you
are unsure about whether a message may be deleted, please consult the Village
Administrator/Clerk/Deputy Treasurer.

E-mail is not designed to transfer large files. Large files may cause problems on the Village's servers, as
well as the recipient’s local server or workstation. Large files are defined as those larger than one megabyte
(1 MB). As a guideline, files with graphics, animation and/or large spreadsheets should be checked. In
addition, large files going to multiple addresses have the potential to cause performance problems across
all applications.

Internet Access

The Internet provides access to a wide variety of resources that can assist Village employees in the
performance of their jobs. The Village may monitor Internet usage at workstations and remote sites and
maintain a record of employee time on the Internet and sites accessed.

Village employees have an obligation to be aware of computer security, economic and privacy concerns
associated with the use of various systems on the Internet, and to guard against computer viruses and
incurring costs while conducting research or communications on the Internet. At no time shall an employee
incur charges for Internet usage without the express consent of the Village Board.

Personal Use of Networks and Computers

The Village of Cambridge recognizes that employees who use computers and the information resources
available on the Village computer networks can enhance their knowledge of electronic information
resources and can sharpen their information technology skills. Personal use of computers during non-
working hours is permitted in order to enhance those skills so long as such use does not interfere with the
employee's job responsibilities and the work of other employees. However, employees shall not utilize the
Village's computer networks, workstations, or other electronic devices on behalf of a third party.

Personal use of Internet access and e-mail services is permitted during personal time provided that the
accessed sites are at no cost to the Village of Cambridge and as long as the employee agrees that any
messages received or sent may be accessed, reviewed and disclosed at the Village's discretion.

All Village employees using Village computer equipment on personal time must follow all guidelines set
forth in this policy.

Perscnal time includes breaks, lunchtime, and time outside of established work hours. Employees using
the resources to fulfill job responsibilities always shall have a priority over those desiring access for personal
use.

All costs associated with personal use of the Village's computer networks for printing information must be
paid for by the employee.

The use of storage space on servers for personal data is prohibited. Personal data may be stored on an
employee’'s hard drive at individual workstations provided that space is available.

Page 29
Employee Handbook Approved by Village Board as revised December 29, 2021



Prohibited Activities

Village employees shall not interfere with or disrupt the Village's computer networks, other network users,
services, programs, software, or equipment.

Interference or disruption with the Village networks, other network users, services, software, or equipment
may include, but are not limited to the following:

+ The use of the Village system and/or networks to gain unauthorized access to remote systems;

¢ The use of the Village system to copy unauthorized system files or copyrighted material, such as
third-party software;

¢ Intentional attempts to “crash” the Village network systems or programs;

+ Attempting to secure unauthorized higher level privileges on the networked systems;

« The willful or negligent introduction of computer viruses or destructive programs that could adversely
affect the Village networks;

e Sharing password information with any other person; if a Village employee does share that
information with another person, the employee shall be solely responsible for the actions thatother
person has appropriated;

* Deleting, examining, or modifying files or work product belonging to other users without their prior
consent; or

¢ Using the network or any of its authorized software for personal gain or solicitation, to harass or
threaten others, to send junk mail or “for-profit” messages.

It is also against Village policy for an employee to engage in the following conduct on the Village networks:

» Access sites or display items that may be regarded as offensive, indecent, or obscene by other
employees or visitors;

» To use abusive or obscene language in any messages transmitted on the networks, including any
internal or external e-mail messages and Internet communications;

* To engage in behavior on the networks that is proscribed under the Village's Employee Handbook,
including, but not limited to harassment; or

e To engage in any other conduct that could cause congestion and disruption of the Village's
networks and systems.

Violations of the Village's Electronic Equipment Policy are subject to the same discipline as any other
violations of Village personnel policies. Judgment regarding violations will be made by the Village
Administrator/Clerk/Deputy Treasurer, Personnel Committee or Village Board, as necessary.

Compliance with Laws

Village employees will be responsible for respecting and adhering to local, state, and federal laws in
conducting their work on Village computer networks. Any attempt to break those laws through the use of
the networks may result in litigation against the offender by the proper authorities. If such an event should
occur, the Village of Cambridge will fully cooperate with the appropriate authorities to provide any
information necessary to assist the relevant law enforcement authorities during the investigation process.

SAFETY

The Village is committed to provide a safe working environment for all employees. Employees in Public
Works and Utilities, and certain Administrative employees may participate in safety training. The purpose
of the training is to educate in the prevention of accidents and injuries to you and others. Other general
safety training may be provided to all Village employees from time to time (e.g., defensive driving, first aid,
CPR). All Village employees are required to follow the guidelines set forth in the Village Safety Policy.

Page 30
Emplovee Handbook Approved by Village Board as revised December 29, 2020



Job Related Injuries

All work injuries, no matter how slight, must be reported immediately to your supervisor. Your department
then notifies the Treasurer of the injury. The Treasurer , as part of administering worker compensation,
reports the injury to the State in compliance with State regulations. If you are severely injured, then the Fire
Department should be called for paramedic service. If the injury is minor but requires treatment, you may
be sent to the Village designated physician or a local clinic. If the injury results in time off from work, then
you must obtain a medical report authorizing your time off from work and your return to work, and whether
the return to work is based upon limited duty or full duty.

VACATING YOUR POSITION

Retirement

Full retirement eligibility is 57 years of age with 30 years of service. You may retire as early as age 55 with
a reduced benefit, depending upon your years of service, as determined by the Personnel Committee.

Upon retirement the employee will be eligible for payment of vacation, personal holiday and floating holiday
time earned the previous year.

Layoff
Layoffs may occur because of a decrease in services, change in work methods, or other conditions. To

assure continued quality services, merit and length of service may be given consideration in determining
the order in which employees are laid off

Loss of Acceptable Position Requirement

You may be laid off if you lose a license or other requirement necessary for you to perform the duties of
your position.

CONCLUSION

This personnel policy manual has been developed to apply consistent and standard guidelines for all
employees in the organization. This manual should help in explaining personnel policies, salary information,
fringe benefit provisions, and other personnel guidelines. Through the implementation of this manual, the
Village encourages open communication with its employees. However, this manual is not intended to
supercede any contractual relationship presently in existence, or possible future contract negotiations.

As stated at the outset of this manual, it is not a contract and because conditions change, the Village
reserves the right to unilaterally alter, add to, or delete any provisions contained in this manual upon proper
action by the Village Board of Trustees. The Village Board welcomes any additional input by the Village
staff to subsequent editions of this manual.

RECEIPT

One signed copy of the following receipt should be removed and placed in the employee’s personnel file.
The other copy will remain with the employee’s personal copy of the Employee Handbook.

Page 31
Employee Handbook Approved by Village Board as revised December 29, 2020



NOTES:

Page 32
Employee Handbook Approved by Village Board as revised Deceniber 29, 202()



APPENDIX A - OFFICIAL EMPLOYEE NOTICES

Federal and state laws require that certain posters be displayed in the workplace. There are also certain
forms and other notices that employees should know about. The following pages contain official legal
notices that are seen on employee bulletin boards, along with some common employment-related forms.
These are provided in the handbook for your convenience and reference. If you have any questicns about
the information provided in these notices and forms, please contact the Village Administrator/Clerk/Deputy

Treasurer. The notices provided include:

Federal Notices

Employment Eligibility Verification (Form 1-9)

Equal Employment Opportunity is the Law

Employee Polygraph Protection Act

Your Rights Under the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993

Your Rights Under the Fair Labor Standards Act — Federal Minimum Wage
You Have a Right to a Safe and Healthful Workplace (OSHA)

State of Wisconsin Notices

Public Employee Safety and Health

Hazardous Chemicals in the Workplace?

Hours and Times of Day Minors May Work in Wisconsin

Employee Protections Against Use of Honesty Testing Devices

Wisconsin Fair Employment Law

Wisconsin Family and Medical Leave Law

Wisconsin Minimum Wage Rates

Notice to Employees About Applying for Wisconsin Unemployment Benefits

Page 33

Employee Handbook Approved by Village Board as revised December 29, 2020



RECEIPT

| hereby acknowledge that | have received the Employee Handbook, and | understand that it is my
responsibility to read and understand the policies contained in the Handbook and any revisions made to it.
| further acknowledge that the Handbook is neither a contract of employment nor a legal document.

The Handbook describes important information about the Village of Cambridge as my Employer. |
understand that | should consult my supervisor about any questions not answered in the Handbook. | have
entered into my employment relationship with the Village of Cambridge voluntarily and acknowledgethat
there is no specified length of employment. Accordingly, either | or the Village of Cambridge may terminate
the relationship at will, with or without cause, at any time.

| acknowledge that the information, policies, and benefits described in the Handbook are subject to change.

Date:

Employee Signature:

Employee's Printed Name

Page 34
Employee Handbook Approved by Village Board as revised December 29, 2020



